

Section I  
 Notice of Development of Proposed Rules  
 and Negotiated Rulemaking

NONE

Section II  
 Proposed Rules

**DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT**

**Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission**

RULE NO.: 11B-18.0053      RULE TITLE: Officer Training Monies Budget and Expenditure Categories

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Paragraph 11B-18.0053(3)(a), F.A.C.: Includes rule text to allow personnel to attend courses funded with Officer Training Monies on a space available basis provided the personnel does not displace a Florida certified officer.

Sub-paragraph 11B-18.0053(3)(a)1., F.A.C.: Amends rule text to remove Officer Training Monies on a space available basis which is now included in Rule 11B-18.0053(3)(a), F.A.C.

Sub-paragraph 11B-18.0053(3)(a)3., F.A.C.: Amends rule text to remove Officer Training Monies on a space available basis which is now included in Rule 11B-18.0053(3)(a), F.A.C.

Sub-paragraph 11B-18.0053(3)(a)4., F.A.C.: Provides training opportunities for consolidated dispatch agency personnel who provide direct support to criminal justice agencies.

SUMMARY: Officer Training Monies.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The Department’s economic analysis of the adverse impact or potential regulatory costs of the proposed rule did not exceed any of the criteria established in Section 120.541(2)(a), Florida Statutes.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2), 943.25(2), (4), (5) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 943.25 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: Friday, January 10, 2025, at 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Joyce Gainous-Harris at (850)410-8615, or joycegainous-harris@fdle.state.fl.us, or write to Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joyce Gainous-Harris at (850)410-8615, or joycegainous-harris@fdle.state.fl.us, or write to Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

**11B-18.0053 Officer Training Monies Budget and Expenditure Categories.**

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Category II, Training Expenses. Each region shall not budget less than 80% of the total regional allocation of Officer Training Monies for the purpose of delivering regional Commission-approved Advanced and Specialized Training Program Courses.

(a) Criminal justice officers and support personnel, pursuant to Section 943.10, F.S., are authorized to expend Officer Training Monies to attend Advanced and Specialized Training Program Courses delivered through a Commission-certified training school, provided the support personnel does not displace a certified officer. The Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission has further authorized the following personnel to attend courses funded with Officer Training Monies on a space available basis, provided the personnel does not displace a Florida certified officer:

1. A sworn federal officer, ~~on a space available basis provided the officer does not displace a Florida officer.~~

2. No change.

3. Full-time staff and part-time instructional coordinators employed by a Commission-certified training school ~~on a space available basis provided the staff does not displace a Florida officer.~~

4. Members of consolidated dispatch agencies that provide direct support to local or state law enforcement agencies. Department of Financial Services, Division of Investigative and Forensic Services, on a space available basis, provided a Florida officer is not displaced.

(b) through (e) No change.

(4) No change.

*Rulemaking Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2), 943.25(2), (4), (5) FS. Law Implemented 943.25 FS. History-New 11-5-02,. Amended 11-30-04, 6-3-10, 3-13-13, 9-4-16, 6-9-20, 8-30-23,\_\_\_\_\_.*

**NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:**

Bureau Chief Glen Hopkins

**NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE:** Governor and Cabinet

**DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD:** December 17, 2024

**DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR:** November 4, 2024

**DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT**

**Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission**

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
11B-27.002	Certification, Employment or Appointment, Reactivation, and Terminating Employment or Appointment of Officers
11B-27.00212	Maintenance of Officer Certification
11B-27.00213	Temporary Employment Authorization
11B-27.0022	Background Investigations
11B-27.003	Duty to Report, Investigations, Procedures
11B-27.013	Canine Team Certification
11B-27.014	Implementation of the Federal Law Enforcement Officers Safety Act of 2004

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** Paragraph 11B-27.002(1)(f), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Affidavit of Applicant, form CJSTC-68, to remove the note requiring private correctional facilities to submit the form.

Subsection 11B-27.002(2), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Registration of Employment Affidavit of Compliance, form CJSTC-60, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained and change the Agency Requirements for agencies unable to enter information online through ATMS to contact FDLE/CJP Records Section for assistance.

Paragraph 11B-27.002(2)(a), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Officer Certification Application, form CJSTC-59, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained and change the Agency Requirements for agencies

unable to enter information online through ATMS to contact FDLE/CJP Records Section for assistance.

Sub-paragraph 11B-27.002(3)(a)2., F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Employment Background Investigative Report, form CJSTC-77, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained and change the Agency Requirements for agencies unable to enter information online through ATMS to contact FDLE/CJP Records Section for assistance.

Sub-paragraph 11B-27.002(3)(a)4., F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Temporary Employment Authorization Statement, form CJSTC-65, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained.

Sub-paragraph 11B-27.002(3)(a)11., F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Exemption-From-Training, form CJSTC-76, and the Exemption-From-Training Proficiency Demonstration, form CJSTC-76A, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained and change the Agency Requirements for agencies unable to enter information online through ATMS to contact FDLE/CJP Records Section for assistance.

Sub-paragraph 11B-27.002(3)(a)15., F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Affidavit of Separation, form CJSTC-61, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained and change the Agency Requirements for agencies unable to enter information online through ATMS to contact FDLE/CJP Records Section for assistance.

Subsection 11B-27.00212(4), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Mandatory Retraining Report, form CJSTC-74, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained and change the Agency Requirements for agencies unable to enter information online through ATMS to contact FDLE/CJP Records Section for assistance.

Subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Law Enforcement Officer Firearms Qualification Standard, form CJSTC-86A, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained.

Paragraph 11B-27.00212(18)(c), F.A.C.: Changes the statutory cite to reflect the correct statute.

Subsection 11B-27.00212(19), F.A.C.: Adds the training requirement for law enforcement officers to complete training on administering lethality assessments and outlines the effect of failing to complete the training by the identified deadline. This resulted from the Florida Legislature’s change to s. 741.29, F.S., during the 2024 Legislative Session.

Sub-paragraph 11B-27.00213(1)(a)2., F.A.C.: Updates the rule language to indicate individuals employed or appointed on a pre-training TEA must demonstrate proficiency in the presence of a Commission-certified “handgun” instructor, formerly a Commission-certified “firearms” instructor.

Paragraph 11B-27.00213(2)(b), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Handgun Performance Evaluation, form CJSTC-4.

Paragraph 11B-27.0022(2)(a), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Authority for Release of Information, form CJSTC-58, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained.

Paragraph 11B-27.003(2)(a), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Internal Investigation Report, form CJSTC-78, to add the officer's email address.

Paragraph 11B-27.013(2)(e), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Canine Team Certification Application, form CJSTC-70, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained.

Paragraph 11B-27.013(3)(c), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Canine Team Performance Evaluation, form CJSTC-83, to update the rule reference and where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained.

Paragraph 11B-27.013(6)(a), F.A.C.: Incorporates the revised Canine Team Certification Deficiency Notification, form CJSTC-270, to update where the original and/or copy of the form should be maintained.

Paragraph 11B-27.014(2)(a), F.A.C.: Updates the course of fire requirements to indicate the range master conducting the course of fire be an active Commission-certified "handgun" instructor instead of "firearms" instructor.

Sub-paragraph 11B-27.014(4)(a)1., F.A.C.: Updates the rule language to change the term from Commission-certified "firearms" instructor to Commission-certified "handgun" instructor which is allowed to request CJSTC-600 forms.

Paragraph 11B-27.014(4)(b), F.A.C.: Updates the rule language to change the term from Commission-certified "firearms" instructor to Commission-certified "handgun" instructor which is allowed to request CJSTC-600 forms.

Subsection 11B-27.014(6), F.A.C.: Updates the rule language to change the term from Commission-certified "firearms" instructor to Commission-certified "handgun" instructor.

SUMMARY: Revised Affidavit of Applicant, form CJSTC-68; Registration of Employment Affidavit of Compliance, form CJSTC-60; Officer Certification Application, form CJSTC-59; Employment Background Investigative Report, form CJSTC-77; Temporary Employment Authorization Statement, form CJSTC-65; Exemption-From-Training, form CJSTC-76; Exemption-From-Training Proficiency Demonstration, form CJSTC-76A; Affidavit of Separation, form CJSTC-61; Mandatory Retraining Report, form CJSTC-74; Law Enforcement Officer Firearms Qualification Standard, form CJSTC-86A; Handgun Performance Evaluation, form CJSTC-4; Authority for Release of Information, form CJSTC-58; Internal Investigation Report, form CJSTC-78; Canine Team Certification Application, form CJSTC-70; Canine Team Performance Evaluation, form CJSTC-83; Canine Team Certification Deficiency Notification, form CJSTC-270;

"firearms" to "handgun" term changes; law enforcement officer training requirement; and forms maintenance.

#### SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The Department's economic analysis of the adverse impact or potential regulatory costs of the proposed rule did not exceed any of the criteria established in Section 120.541(2)(a), Florida Statutes.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 741.29(2), 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.133(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 741.29(2), 943.12, (3), (16), 943.13, (11), 943.131, 943.132, 943.133, 943.135, 943.139, 943.1395, (3), (5), 943.17(1)(a), 943.1701, 943.1715, 943.1716, 943.253 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: Friday, January 10, 2025, at 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Joyce Gainous-Harris at (850)410-8615, or joycegainous-harris@fdle.state.fl.us, or write to Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308.. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joyce Gainous-Harris at (850)410-8615, or joycegainous-harris@fdle.state.fl.us, or write to Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice

Professionalism, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

**11B-27.002 Certification, Employment or Appointment, Reactivation, and Terminating Employment or Appointment of Officers.**

(1) Certification or Reactivation of Certification. Prior to submitting an application for certification or reactivation of certification for a law enforcement, correctional, or correctional probation officer, the employing agency shall collect and verify documents establishing that an applicant has complied with the requirements of Section 943.13, F.S. Verified documents shall be maintained in the officer’s training file at the employing agency. The following documents are required for verification of an applicant’s compliance with this rule section:

- (a) through (e) No change.
- (f) An Affidavit of Applicant, form CJSTC-68, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 13, 2020, effective 5/2021~~, hereby incorporated by reference ~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13129>~~ ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13129>~~, executed by the applicant attesting that the applicant complies with the employment or appointment qualifications pursuant to Sections 943.13(1)-(10), F.S. Form CJSTC-68 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850)410-8615.

(g) through (h) No change.

(2) The employing agency administrator is required, within 30 days of hire, to submit to Commission staff or electronically transmit through the Commission’s Automated Training Management System (ATMS), and maintain on file a Registration of Employment Affidavit of Compliance, form CJSTC-60, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 13, 2020, effective 5/2021~~, hereby incorporated by reference ~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13130>~~ ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13130>~~, attesting to compliance by the employing agency with the following requirements. Form CJSTC-60 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850) 410-8615.

(a) For law enforcement, correctional, and correctional probation officer applicants who have not been previously certified and who have complied with the certification requirements pursuant to Sections 943.13(1)-(10), F.S., the employing agency shall certify to the Commission that the applicant is eligible for certification by submitting to Commission staff or electronically transmitting through the Commission’s Automated Training Management System

(ATMS), a completed Officer Certification Application, form CJSTC-59, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 13, 2020, effective 5/2021~~, hereby incorporated by reference ~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13131>~~ ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13131>~~, within 30 days of the applicant’s compliance with the certification requirements, notwithstanding whether the applicant is separated from employment. Upon receipt of an Officer Certification Application Deficiency Notification, form CJSTC-259, revised August 13, 2020, effective 5/2021, hereby incorporated by reference ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13132>~~, the employing agency shall maintain on file, a copy of form CJSTC-59 and any other employment documentation. Forms CJSTC-59 and CJSTC-259 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850) 410-8615. The employing agency shall submit a copy of form CJSTC-259 and the missing or deficient documentation to Commission staff within 90 days of the date the form was signed and issued to the agency. Failure by the employing agency to submit missing or deficient documentation within the required 90 days may result in denial of an applicant’s request for certification. An officer applicant shall not work as a sworn officer prior to meeting the requirements of Section 943.13, F.S., except as authorized pursuant to Section 943.131, F.S.

- (b) No change.
- (3) Employment requirements pursuant to Sections 943.13, F.S., shall be documented on an Agency New Hire Report, form CJSTC-207, revised August 12, 2021, effective 6/2022, hereby incorporated by reference ~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-14226>~~. Form CJSTC-207 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850)410-8615.

(a) The files of newly hired officers are subject to an on-site inspection by Commission staff to ensure compliance with the requirements of Chapter 943, F.S., and ~~rule~~ Chapter 11B-27, F.A.C. All documents collected in conjunction with the background investigation shall be available for review. The following documents shall be reviewed for completeness:

- 1. No change.
- 2. An Employment Background Investigative Report, form CJSTC-77, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 13, 2020, effective 5/2021~~, hereby incorporated by reference ~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13134>~~ ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13134>~~. Form CJSTC-77 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address:

<http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850) 410-8615.

3. No change.

4. A Temporary Employment Authorization Statement, form CJSTC-65, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective ~~November 5, 2015, effective 9/2016~~, hereby incorporated by reference

~~[https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-\\_\\_\\_\\_\\_](https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____)~~ ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-07372>~~. Form CJSTC-65 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address:

~~<http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>~~, or by contacting Commission staff at (850) 410-8615.

5. through 10. No change.

11. An Exemption-From-Training, form CJSTC-76, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 2, 2018, effective 7/2019~~, hereby incorporated by reference

~~[https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-\\_\\_\\_\\_\\_](https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____)~~ ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-40751>~~, and an Exemption-From-Training Proficiency Demonstration, form CJSTC-76A, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 2, 2018, effective 7/2019~~, hereby incorporated

by \_\_\_\_\_ reference ~~[https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-\\_\\_\\_\\_\\_](https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____)~~ ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-40752>~~, for previous Florida and out-of-state, federal, military officers, or special operations forces as defined in section 943.10(22), F.S., if the officer used this training option. Forms CJSTC-76 and CJSTC-76A can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address:

~~<http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>~~, or by contacting Commission staff at (850) 410-8615.

12. through 14. No change.

15. An Affidavit of Separation, form CJSTC-61, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 18, 2022 effective 8/2023~~, hereby incorporated by reference, ~~[https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-\\_\\_\\_\\_\\_](https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____)~~ ~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-45516>~~, if the officer has separated employment with the agency. Form CJSTC-61 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address:

~~<http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>~~, or by contacting Commission staff at (850) 410-8615.

(b) No change.

(4) through (5) No change.

*Rulemaking Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(3), 943.13, 943.133, 943.139, 943.1395 FS. History—New 10-6-82, Amended 4-26-84, 1-7-85, Formerly 11B-27.02, Amended 9-3-87, 3-29-89, 5-14-92, 12-13-92, 9-5-93, 1-19-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, 3-27-06, 3-21-07, 6-9-08, 6-3-10, 5-*

*21-12, 3-13-13, 5-29-14, 7-29-15, 9-4-16, 9-14-17, 8-15-18, 7-9-19, 5-5-20, 5-20-21, 6-26-22, 8-30-23, \_\_\_\_\_.*

**11B-27.00212 Maintenance of Officer Certification.**

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Continuing education or training pursuant to Section 943.135, F.S. Upon an officer’s completion of the required continuing education or training the employing agency shall submit or electronically transmit to Commission staff through the Commission’s ATMS, and maintain in file a completed Mandatory Retraining Report, form CJSTC-74, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 18, 2022, effective 8/2023~~, hereby incorporated by reference

~~[https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-\\_\\_\\_\\_\\_](https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____)~~ ~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-45517>~~. Form CJSTC-74 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address:

~~<http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>~~, or by contacting Commission staff at (850)410-8615. Criminal justice agencies shall not update an officer’s mandatory training unless an officer is employed by the agency or has met the requirement for employment pursuant to subsection 11B-27.002(1), F.A.C.

(5) through (13) No change.

(14) Law Enforcement Officer Firearms Qualification Standard. Beginning July 1, 2006, a law enforcement officer shall be required to qualify on the Commission’s approved course of fire with the proficiency skills documented on the Law Enforcement Officer Firearms Qualification Standard, form CJSTC-86A, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 10, 2023, effective 6/2024~~, hereby incorporated by reference

~~[https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-\\_\\_\\_\\_\\_](https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____)~~ ~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-46661>~~, and maintained in the officer’s employment file. Form CJSTC-86A can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address:

~~<http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>~~, or by contacting Commission staff at (850)410-8615.

(a) through (e) No change.

(15) through (17) No change.

(18) Sexual Assault Investigation. As a part of an officer’s continuing education or training, a law enforcement officer shall be required to complete training on sexual assault, with an emphasis on culturally responsive, trauma-informed training on interviewing sexual assault victims and investigations of incidents of sexual assault.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The certification of a law enforcement officer who fails to comply with the requirements pursuant to s. ~~943.1724~~ ~~943.17298~~, F.S., shall become inactive and shall remain inactive until the officer completes the required training and the officer’s employing agency provides Commission staff with verification that the officer has completed the required training.

(d) No change.

(19) Administering Lethality Assessments. As a part of an officer’s continuing education or training, a law enforcement officer shall be required to complete training on the policies and procedures for administering a lethality assessment to victims of domestic violence.

(a) All law enforcement officers shall complete the Commission-approved course developed pursuant to s. 741.29(2)(b), F.S., prior to October 1, 2026.

(b) All law enforcement officers who complete a law enforcement basic recruit training program which began on or after July 1, 2026, shall have met this requirement.

(c) The certification of a law enforcement officer who fails to comply with the requirements pursuant to s. 741.29(2)(b), F.S., shall become inactive and shall remain inactive until the officer completes the required training and the officer’s employing agency provides Commission staff with verification that the officer has completed the required training.

(d) Upon an officer’s completion of the required training, the employing agency shall submit, or electronically transmit to Commission staff through the Commission’s ATMS, the date of completion.

*Rulemaking Authority 741.29(2), 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 741.29(2), 943.12, 943.13(11), 943.135, 943.1395(3), 943.1701, 943.1715, 943.1716, 943.253 FS. History—New, 11-5-02. Amended 12-3-03, 11-30-04, 3-27-06, 3-21-07, 6-9-08, 4-16-09, 9-28-09, 6-3-10, 5-21-12, 3-13-13, 9-4-16, 8-15-18, 5-5-20, 5-20-21, 6-26-22, 8-30-23, 6-25-24, \_\_\_\_\_. Editorial Note: See 11B-27.0023, F.A.C.*

**11B-27.00213 Temporary Employment Authorization.**

A Certificate of Compliance shall not be issued to officers employed on a Temporary Employment Authorization (TEA) prior to meeting the requirements of Sections 943.13(1)-(10), F.S.

(1) A TEA shall only be issued pursuant to Section 943.131, F.S. Individuals hired on a TEA shall comply with the firearms training program established by Section 943.17(1)(a), F.S.

(a) Pre-Training TEA. Individuals employed or appointed on a pre-training TEA shall:

1. No change.

2. Successfully complete eight hours of firearms training, which shall include demonstration of proficiency in the presence of a Commission-certified handgun firearms instructor.

3. through 5. No change.

(b) through (c) No change.

(2) An officer employed on a TEA, shall be excused from the firearms training requirement upon placement of a statement in the officer’s file at the employing agency. The statement shall be signed by the agency administrator confirming that the TEA-appointed officer shall not be permitted to carry a firearm until the following classroom training requirements have been fulfilled:

(a) No change.

(b) Firearms Range Training. The trainee’s proficiency demonstration shall be documented on a Handgun Performance Evaluation, form CJSTC-4, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 18, 2022, effective 8/2023~~, hereby incorporated by reference [https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-\\_\\_\\_\\_\\_](https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____)

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ [https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-45509, and maintained in the trainee’s file at the employing agency. Form CJSTC-4 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at \(850\)410-8615. The instructor shall qualify the trainee with a semi-automatic pistol using the Commission’s Basic Recruit Training Firearms Proficiency Skills, pursuant to form CJSTC-4, and the form shall be maintained in the trainee’s file at the employing agency.](https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-45509)

(3) through (5) No change.

*Rulemaking Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(3), 943.13, 943.131, 943.133, 943.139, 943.1395, 943.17(1)(a) FS. History—New, 11-5-02. Amended 11-30-04, 3-27-06, 6-9-08, 9-28-09, 6-3-10, 5-21-12, 3-13-13, 9-4-16, 6-26-22, 8-30-23, \_\_\_\_\_. Editorial Note: See 11B-27.0023, F.A.C.*

**11B-27.0022 Background Investigations.**

(1) No change.

(2) The employing agency shall, at a minimum, use the following background investigation procedures:

(a) Obtain previous employment data from prior employers. Criminal justice agencies conducting background investigations have the option of using the Authority for Release of Information, form CJSTC-58, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ ~~August 13, 2020, effective 5/2021~~, hereby incorporated by reference [https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-\\_\\_\\_\\_\\_](https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____) ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13137>~~, pursuant to Sections 943.134(2) and (4), F.S. Form CJSTC-58 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address:

<http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850)410-8615.

(b) through (d) No change.

(3) through (4) No change.

*Rulemaking Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.133(3) FS. Law Implemented 943.133, 943.139 FS. History—New 10-6-82, Amended 1-7-85, Formerly 11B-27.022, Amended 7-13-87, 10-17-90, 5-13-92, 5-14-92, 12-13-92, 9-5-93, 8-7-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, 3-27-06, 3-21-07, 6-9-08, 6-3-10, 3-13-13, 5-5-20, 5-20-21, \_\_\_\_\_.*

**11B-27.003 Duty to Report, Investigations, Procedures.**

(1) No change.

(2) Upon concluding the investigation:

(a) If the allegations are sustained, the employing agency shall complete an Internal Investigation Report, form CJSTC-78, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_, ~~August 13, 2020, effective 5/2021,~~ hereby incorporated by reference, ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13138>~~, regardless of whether any civil service appeal, arbitration, employment hearing, administrative, civil, or criminal action is pending or contemplated. Form CJSTC-78 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850)410-8615.

(b) through (c) No change.

*Rulemaking Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.1395(5) FS. History—New 10-6-82, Amended 1-7-85, Formerly 11B-27.03, Amended 12-13-92, 9-5-93, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, 6-9-08, 9-14-17, 8-15-18, 5-20-21, \_\_\_\_\_.*

**11B-27.013 Canine Team Certification.**

(1) No change.

(2) Canine team certification requirements. Commission certification of a canine team is not required. If a canine team seeks Commission certification, the canine team shall meet the following requirements:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) A canine team shall provide documentation of the canine team’s compliance with certification requirements and submit a Canine Team Certification Application, form CJSTC-70, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_, ~~August 12, 2021, effective 6/2022,~~ hereby incorporated by reference ~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-44218>~~.

Form CJSTC-70 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850)410-8615.

(3) Required documentation for certification of a canine team. Documentation of compliance for Commission certification of canine teams shall include:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) A completed Canine Team Performance Evaluation form CJSTC-83, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_, ~~November 6, 2014, effective 7/2015,~~ hereby incorporated by reference

~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-05655>~~, shall be verified by evaluator(s) to ensure the canine team completed the proficiency requirements. Form CJSTC-83 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850) 410-8615.

1. through 7. No change.

(4) through (5) No change.

(6) Inspection of canine team applicant files.

(a) Upon determination of an unfavorable inspection by Commission staff, the deficiencies shall be documented on a Canine Team Certification Deficiency Notification form CJSTC-270, revised \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_, ~~November 6, 2014, effective 7/2015,~~ hereby incorporated by reference

~~<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-05660>~~. Form CJSTC-270 can be obtained at the following FDLE Internet address: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CJSTC/Publications/Forms.aspx>, or by contacting Commission staff at (850) 410-8615.

(b) No change.

(7) No change.

*Rulemaking Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(16) FS. History—New 3-29-89, Amended 12-13-92, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, 3-27-06, 3-21-07, 6-9-08, 9-28-09, 6-3-10, 3-13-13, 5-29-14, 5-29-14, 7-29-15, 9-4-16, 6-26-22, \_\_\_\_\_.*

**11B-27.014 Implementation of the Federal Law Enforcement Officers Safety Act of 2004.**

(1) No change.

(2) Requirements for administering the course of fire are as follows:

(a) The range master conducting the course of fire shall be an active Commission-certified ~~handgun firearms~~ instructor pursuant to paragraphs 11B-20.0014(2)(c) or (d), F.A.C.

(b) through (c) No change.

(3) No change.

(4) Issuance and Maintenance of form CJSTC-600.

(a) A request for form CJSTC-600 shall be made in writing to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, Post Office Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302, Attention: Officer Records Section.

1. A Commission-certified ~~handgun firearms~~ instructor is allowed to receive up to 50 each of the CJSTC-600 form with each written request, and the request shall include the ~~handgun firearm~~ instructor’s full name, mailing address and physical address if different from the mailing address, telephone number, and the name of the Commission-certified training school, defined as “training school” in subsection 11B-18.003(23), F.A.C., affiliation or criminal justice agency affiliation.

2. through 3. No change.

(b) A Commission-certified ~~handgun firearms~~ instructor shall only issue a CJSTC-600 form for successful completion of the course of fire. Each CJSTC-600 form shall be issued with a specific number imprinted on the form and the ~~handgun firearms~~ instructor shall maintain documentation for a period of two years indicating to whom the CJSTC-600 was issued, which shall be subject to audit by Commission staff during regular business hours upon a two-day written notice by Commission staff.

(c) No change.

(5) through (6) No change.

*Rulemaking Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12, 943.132 FS. History—New 3-3-08, Amended 6-3-10, 3-13-13, 7-9-19, 5-5-20, \_\_\_\_\_.*

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:  
Bureau Chief Glen Hopkins  
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Governor and Cabinet  
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 17, 2024  
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: November 4, 2024

**FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION**

**Freshwater Fish and Wildlife**

RULE NO.: 68A-27.003  
RULE TITLE: Florida Endangered and Threatened Species List; Prohibitions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rulemaking is to update the incorporated link to the most recent version of the Commission-approved Gopher Tortoise Management Plan. The effect of this rule revision is to update the effective date, hyperlinks, and references to the Commission-approved Gopher Tortoise Management Plan.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes incorporate the Gopher Tortoise Management Plan in rule by reference. The Gopher Tortoise Management Plan outlines objectives, strategies and actions designed to improve the status of the species in Florida. The Plan guides conservation efforts for the gopher tortoises over a 10-year period from 2024 to 2034. At

the December 11th, 2024 meeting, the Commission reviewed and approved the updated management plan for the gopher tortoise. The intent of this rule revision is to update the link to the Commission-approved management plan by reference and provide hyperlinks.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: the nature of the rule and the preliminary analysis conducted to determine whether a SERC was required.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

**RULEMAKING AUTHORITY:** Art. IV, Sec. 9, Florida Constitution

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** Art. IV, Sec. 9, Florida Constitution  
**IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.**

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS:** Claire Sunquist Blunden, Section Leader, Wildlife Diversity Conservation Section, Division of Habitat and Species Conservation, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 S. Meridian St., Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600.

**THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:**

**68A-27.003 Florida Endangered and Threatened Species List; Prohibitions.**

- (1) No change
- (2) State-designated Threatened species:
  - (a) through (e) No change.



(f) Reptiles:

1. through 4. No change.

5. Gopher tortoise (*Gopherus polyphemus*). The gopher tortoise shall be afforded the protective provisions specified in this subparagraph. No person shall take, attempt to take, pursue, hunt, harass, capture, possess, sell or transport any gopher tortoise or parts thereof or their eggs, or molest, damage, or destroy gopher tortoise burrows, except as authorized by Commission permit or when complying with the Gopher Tortoise Management Plan effective ~~December 2024 September 2012~~ herein incorporated by reference (<https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-xxxx>)

(~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-12192~~). A gopher tortoise burrow is a tunnel with a cross-section that closely approximates the shape of a gopher tortoise. Permits will be issued based upon whether issuance would further goals and objectives of the Management Plan and the Gopher Tortoise Permitting Guidelines effective April 2023, herein incorporated by reference (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15273>).

6. through 9. No change.

(g) through (i) No change.

*Rulemaking Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-22-80, 7-1-83, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-27.03, Amended 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 4-27-89, 9-14-93, 6-23-99, Formerly 39-27.003. Amended 12-16-03, 7-20-09, 11-8-10, 11-14-11, 8-23-12, 9-19-12, 6-10-15, 1-11-17, 6-2-17, 7-20-18, 12-23-18, 6-25-19, 2-17-20, 11-2-20, 2-9-21, 5-27-21, 9-4-22, 1-30-23, 5-24-23,\_\_\_\_\_.*

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Claire Sunquist Blunden, Section Leader, Wildlife Diversity Conservation Section, Division of Habitat and Species Conservation, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 S. Meridian St., Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600. NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission.

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD:

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: December 18, 2024

### Section III

#### Notice of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

NONE

### Section IV Emergency Rules

NONE

### Section V Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES  
Substance Abuse Program

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

65D-30.0142: Clinical and Operational Standards for Medication-Assisted Treatment for Opioid Use Disorders

The Department of Children and Families hereby gives notice: On December 20, 2024, the Department issued an Order Denying Waiver to Metro Treatment of Florida, L.P. The Petition sought a waiver of Rule 65D-30.0142(1)(h)2., Florida Administrative Code, which requires all medication-assisted treatment providers to be open Monday through Saturday. Metro Treatment of Florida requested Saturday closure at 31 clinics throughout Florida based on changes to federal rules that authorized additional take home medications. Petitioner failed to demonstrate the purpose of the statutes underlying the rule would be met by a waiver. Petitioner also failed to demonstrate a strict application of the rule would be a hardship or violate principles of fairness. The Notice of Petition for Waiver was published on August 15, 2024, in Volume 50, Number 160 of the Florida Administrative Register. No comments were received.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting:

Agency Clerk, Department of Children and Families, 2415 North Monroe Street, Suite 400, Tallahassee, FL 32303 or [Agency.Clerk@myflfamilies.com](mailto:Agency.Clerk@myflfamilies.com)

### Section VI

#### Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council

The Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 3, 2025, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone: <https://meet.goto.com/922318349>

You can also dial in using your phone. United States: (224)501-3412, Access Code: 922-318-349

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** Council's Nominating Committee will meet and develop a recommendation for the Year 2025 Officers (Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary-Treasurer).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Liz Gulick at (772)221-4060 or lgulick@tcrpc.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Liz Gulick at (772)221-4060 or lgulick@tcrpc.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Liz Gulick at (772)221-4060 or lgulick@tcrpc.org.

#### DEPARTMENT OF ELDER AFFAIRS

##### Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program

The Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** February 12, 2025; May 14, 2025; August 13, 2025; November 12, 2025, 10:00 a.m., CT/11:00 a.m., ET  
**PLACE:** 160 W Government St., D1 Conf Rm, 1st Floor, Pensacola, FL 32502

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** Northwest Council Business

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Dept. of Elder Affairs / LTCOP, 4040 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399, or call: (850)414-2323, or email: ltcopinformer@elderaffairs.org

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 72 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (850)414-2323, or email: ltcopinformer@elderaffairs.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

#### THE CORRADINO GROUP, INC.

The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** Tuesday, January 7, 2025, from 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

**PLACE:** The Construction Open House will be held virtually and in person.

The Virtual Public Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 7, 2025, from 5:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. Please use the following link to register: <https://bit.ly/Atlantic-Ave-Project>. You may also call +1(914)614-3221, Access code: code: 558-622-003 A brief presentation followed by questions and comments from the public will be held from 5:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m. and again from 5:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. Questions and comments may be submitted via the online chat or with the raise hand feature for the project team to address directly.

The In-Person Open House is scheduled for Tuesday, January 7, 2025, from 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. at the Hagen Ranch Road Branch Library, Meeting Room, 14350 Hagen Ranch Road, Delray Beach, FL 33446, and will have an informal open house format. FDOT staff and consultant staff members will be available to discuss the project and answer questions.

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** Financial Management No.: 229658-4-52-01/02, 229658-4-56-02/03, and 440575-2-52-01/02

**Project Description:** State Road (SR) 806/Atlantic Avenue Reconstruction Project from west of SR 7/US 441 to just east of SR 91/Florida's Turnpike and on SR 7/US 441 from just south of Rio Grande Avenue to just south of Tivoli Isles Boulevard in Palm Beach County.

The project improvements include widening SR 806/Atlantic Avenue from west of SR 7/US 441 to east of Lyons Road from 2 to 4 lanes, and from Lyons Road to east of SR 91/Florida's Turnpike from 4 to 6 lanes, to enhance traffic flow and safety. The SR 7/US 441 and SR 806/Atlantic Avenue intersection will be expanded to accommodate a third northbound and southbound through lane, along with a second northbound right-turn lane, to improve infrastructure resilience, traffic flow, and safety. The Lyons Road and SR 806/Atlantic Avenue intersection will also be expanded to accommodate three eastbound and westbound through lanes, dual left-turn lanes, and single right-turn lanes, further improving traffic flow and safety. The project includes constructing continuous 6-foot sidewalks and 7-foot buffered bike lanes in both directions of SR 806/Atlantic Avenue from SR 7/US 441 to east of Lyons Road, along with an 8-foot sidewalk along the westbound side from east of Lyons Road to west of SR 91/Florida's Turnpike, to enhance safety and connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists. The existing SR 806/Atlantic Avenue bridge over the Lake Worth Drainage District E-1 canal will be reconfigured to accommodate an eastbound sidewalk, providing improved pedestrian access. The Lake Worth Drainage District L-34 canal will be relocated approximately 60 feet south to accommodate roadway widening and ensure resilient infrastructure with effective water drainage management. Additionally, the Smith Sundry Road and SR 806/Atlantic

Avenue intersection will be expanded to align with a future Palm Beach County project, which will feature two lanes in each direction along Atlantic Avenue. Throughout the project limits, drainage, signage, lighting, signalization, and pavement markings will be upgraded to enhance infrastructure resilience, traffic flow, and safety. Fiber optic cables will also be installed along the corridor to interconnect traffic signals and improve real-time communication and safety.

Construction will begin in January 2025 and is estimated to be completed in Summer 2028. The estimated cost is \$26 million. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: No agenda

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Ricky Estripeaut, P.E. — FDOT Project Manager ricky.estripeaut@dot.state.fl.us or (561)531-2884

Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Melissa Reading, Community Outreach Specialist, at (772)577-8803 or by email at mreading@corradino.com.

#### Central Florida Expressway Authority

The Central Florida Expressway Authority announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, February 17, 2025, 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.

PLACE: Via Team/The in-person meeting will be held at Poinciana Library, 101 N Doverplum Ave, Kissimmee, FL 34758. To register for this meeting, please click here: <https://shorturl.at/dKUES>

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** The proposed Southport Connector Expressway is part of a series of new roadways proposed to help Move Poinciana. The proposed expressway would be part of a regional solution for easier and more efficient travel - including making it more convenient to get to Interstate 4 and Florida's Turnpike. The PD&E Study is evaluating alternatives for an elevated expressway along Cypress Parkway, designed to alleviate traffic backups and improve the reliability of commutes. Community input plays a vital role in evaluating the elevated concepts.

This will be the first of two CEG meetings anticipated to be held as part of the PD&E Study. During this meeting, the CFX project study team will present information about the study, including information on the alternatives being evaluated, and

receive input from CEG members. All factors related to conceptual design and location of the facility, including transportation needs, financial feasibility, social impacts, economic factors, environmental impacts, engineering analysis, and right-of-way requirements, are being considered in the study.

As a special informational resource to CFX and the consultant team, the CEG is an important component of this study process. The CEG's input regarding local needs, concerns and social impacts is crucial in the evaluation of the feasibility of the project.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mary Brooks, Public Involvement Coordinator, by phone at (407)694-5505, by email at [ProjectStudies@CFXway.com](mailto:ProjectStudies@CFXway.com).

For more information, you may contact: Mary Brooks, Public Involvement Coordinator, by phone at (407)694-5505, by email at [ProjectStudies@CFXway.com](mailto:ProjectStudies@CFXway.com).

#### Central Florida Expressway Authority

The Central Florida Expressway Authority announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, February 11, 2025, 9:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.

PLACE: The meeting will be held virtually via Teams. To register for this meeting, please click here: <https://shorturl.at/ePGwE>

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** The proposed Southport Connector Expressway is part of a series of new roadways proposed to help Move Poinciana. The proposed expressway would be part of a regional solution for easier and more efficient travel - including making it more convenient to get to Interstate 4 and Florida's Turnpike. The PD&E Study is evaluating alternatives for an elevated expressway along Cypress Parkway, designed to alleviate traffic backups and improve the reliability of commutes. Community input plays a vital role in evaluating the elevated concepts.

During the PAG meeting, the CFX project study team will present information about the study, including information on the alternatives being evaluated, and receive input from PAG members. All factors related to conceptual design and location of the facility, including transportation needs, financial feasibility, social impacts, economic factors, environmental impacts, engineering analysis, and right-of-way requirements, are being considered in the study.

As a special informational resource to CFX and the consultant team, the PAG is an important component of this study process. The PAG's input regarding local needs, concerns and social

impacts is crucial in the evaluation of the feasibility of the project.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mary Brooks, Public Involvement Coordinator, by phone at (407)694-5505, by email at ProjectStudies@CFXway.com.

For more information, you may contact: Mary Brooks, Public Involvement Coordinator, by phone at (407)694-5505, by email at ProjectStudies@CFXway.com.

Central Florida Expressway Authority

The Central Florida Expressway Authority announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, February 11, 2025, 1:30 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: The meeting will be held virtually via Teams. To register for this meeting, please click here: <https://shorturl.at/4o1Ue>

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The proposed Southport Connector Expressway is part of a series of new roadways proposed to help Move Poinciana. The proposed expressway would be part of a regional solution for easier and more efficient travel - including making it more convenient to get to Interstate 4 and Florida’s Turnpike. The PD&E Study is evaluating alternatives for an elevated expressway along Cypress Parkway, designed to alleviate traffic backups and improve the reliability of commutes. Community input plays a vital role in evaluating the elevated concepts.

During the EAG meeting, the CFX project study team will present information about the study, including information on the alternatives being evaluated, and receive input from EAG members. All factors related to conceptual design and location of the facility, including transportation needs, financial feasibility, social impacts, economic factors, environmental impacts, engineering analysis, and right-of-way requirements, are being considered in the study.

As a special informational resource to CFX and the consultant team, the EAG is an important component of this study process. The EAG's input regarding local needs, concerns and environmental impacts is crucial in the evaluation of the feasibility of the project.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mary Brooks, Public Involvement Coordinator, by phone at (407)694-5505, by email at ProjectStudies@CFXway.com.

For more information, you may contact: Mary Brooks, Public Involvement Coordinator, by phone at (407)694-5505, by email at ProjectStudies@CFXway.com.

Section VII  
Notice of Petitions and Dispositions  
Regarding Declaratory Statements

NONE

Section VIII  
Notice of Petitions and Dispositions  
Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Section IX  
Notice of Petitions and Dispositions  
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

Section X  
Announcements and Objection Reports of  
the Joint Administrative Procedures  
Committee

NONE

Section XI  
Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and  
Purchasing

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

Central Florida Regional Planning Council

Central Florida Regional Planning Council

Request for Qualifications: Polk County Adaptation Plan

For Central Florida Regional Planning Council

Background:

The Central Florida Regional Planning Council (CFRPC) seeks qualified firms to complete the Polk County Adaptation Plan

consistent with the Florida Adaptation Planning Guidebook and Resilient Florida Legislation. The selected consultant will assess flood risks through advanced mapping and vulnerability analyses. Community engagement will be a critical component of this project to ensure the adaptation plan aligns with local needs and priorities. The CFRPC is committed to diversity in its employees and consultants and therefore encourages qualified minority and disadvantaged firms to apply.

Areas of Expertise:

Adaptation Planning, Adaptation Strategies, GIS, Resiliency, Resilient Florida Legislation, Vulnerability Assessment, Flood Risk Assessment, Community Engagement

Download full instructions and submittal information/instructions at [www.cfrpc.org/doingbusiness](http://www.cfrpc.org/doingbusiness)

**DECKER CONSTRUCTION**

IF23144 State Deferred Maintenance 3rd Floor HVAC - Mechanical and Mechanical Controls

Decker Construction is soliciting formal bids for the Mechanical and Mechanical Controls Scope of work for the IF23144 State Deferred Maintenance 3rd Floor HVAC project at the UF-IFAS facility in Lake Alfred, FL.

The bid must address/include the following specific requirements:

- Pre-Qualification Form: Must submit with your bid.
- UF Guidelines, E-Verify Compliance & Background Check Requirements.
- Competent foremen (Journeyman Certification) on-site at all times.
- Full Mechanical & Mechanical Controls Scope of Work per 100% Construction Documents and Specifications. All labor, materials, & equipment.
- Any Bid Proposals exceeding \$150,000 must be submitted in a sealed bid package and delivered either by mail or in person to our office.
  - Physical (Hand Delivery) Address: 1503 NW 16th Ave, Gainesville, FL 32605
  - Mailing Address: P.O. Box 358973, Gainesville, FL 32635

Decker Construction encourages all contractors to visit the site prior to submitting a bid.

- Pre-Bid RFI’s Due Date: 5:00 pm on Thursday, 01/09/2025
- Official Bid Due Date: 5:00pm on Monday, 01/27/2025
- Bid Opening: Bids will be opened with the Owner based on Owner’s availability.

For information to request a site visit or to participate in this solicitation, please direct your inquiries to [justin@deckercm.com](mailto:justin@deckercm.com) and [ashlyn@deckercm.com](mailto:ashlyn@deckercm.com).

Decker Construction  
(352)448-1428

**Section XII  
Miscellaneous**

**DEPARTMENT OF STATE**

Index of Administrative Rules Filed with the Secretary of State Pursuant to subparagraph 120.55(1)(b)6. – 7., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, December 17, 2024, and 3:00 p.m., Monday, December 23, 2024.

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
5K-10.006	12/23/2024	1/12/2025
34-5.001	12/20/2024	1/9/2025
34-5.004	12/20/2024	1/9/2025
34-5.006	12/20/2024	1/9/2025
34-5.020	12/20/2024	1/9/2025
34-6.003	12/20/2024	1/9/2025
34-6.006	12/20/2024	1/9/2025
34-17.008	12/20/2024	1/9/2025
34-17.010	12/20/2024	1/9/2025
34-17.017	12/20/2024	1/9/2025
53ER24-54	12/17/2024	12/18/2024
53ER24-55	12/17/2024	12/18/2024
53ER24-56	12/17/2024	12/18/2024
53ER24-57	12/17/2024	12/18/2024
53ER24-58	12/17/2024	12/18/2024
60Y-4.029	12/17/2024	1/6/2025
64B5-2.0150	12/18/2024	1/7/2025
64B10-11.001	12/18/2024	1/7/2025
64B10-11.002	12/18/2024	1/7/2025
75-2.001	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-2.004	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-2.006	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-2.010	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-2.011	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-2.012	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-2.020	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-2.023	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-2.024	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-2.025	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-3.001	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-3.002	12/19/2024	1/8/2025

75-3.003	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-3.004	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-5.002	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-5.004	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-6.001	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-6.002	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-6.004	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-6.0052	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-6.006	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-6.009	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-6.012	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-7.020	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-8.003	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-8.006	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
75-9.004	12/19/2024	1/8/2025
<b>LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES</b>		
<b>Rule No.</b>	<b>File Date</b>	<b>Effective Date</b>
60FF1-5.009	7/21/2016	**/**/****
64B8-10.003	12/9/2015	**/**/****
65C-9.004	3/31/2022	**/**/****

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING RIGHTS: Any person whose substantial interests will be determined or affected by this Airport Site Approval Order has the right, pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes, to petition for an administrative hearing. The petition for an administrative hearing must conform to the requirements of Rule Chapter 28-106, Florida Administrative Code, and must be filed, in writing, within twenty-one days of the publication of this notice, with the Clerk of Agency Proceedings, Office of General Counsel, Florida Department of Transportation, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 58, Room 550, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450. Failure to file a petition within the allowed time constitutes a waiver of any right such person has to request a hearing under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.

### Section XIII Index to Rules Filed During Preceding Week

#### INDEX TO RULES FILED BETWEEN DECEMBER 6, 2024, AND DECEMBER 20, 2024

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

**DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE**

**Sales and Use Tax**

12AER24-5	12/16/24	1/1/25	50/246
12AER24-6	12/16/24	1/1/25	50/246
12AER24-7	12/16/24	1/1/25	50/246
12AER24-8	12/16/24	1/1/25	50/246

**Corporate, Estate and Intangible Tax**

12CER24-2	12/16/24	1/1/25	50/246
12CER24-3	12/16/24	1/1/25	50/246
12CER24-4	12/16/24	1/1/25	50/246

**DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS**

33-302.110	12/16/24	1/5/25	50/196
------------	----------	--------	--------

**COMMISSION ON ETHICS**

34-5.001	12/20/24	1/9/25	50/215
34-5.004	12/20/24	1/9/25	50/215
34-5.006	12/20/24	1/9/25	50/215
34-5.020	12/20/24	1/9/25	50/215
34-6.003	12/20/24	1/9/25	50/210
34-6.006	12/20/24	1/9/25	50/210
34-17.008	12/20/24	1/9/25	50/215
34-17.010	12/20/24	1/9/25	50/215
34-17.017	12/20/24	1/9/25	50/215

**DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION**

Proposed Airport Site Approval Order for Shell Bay Golf Course Heliport

**FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION**

The Florida Department of Transportation intends to issue an "Airport Site Approval Order," in accordance with Chapter 330, Florida Statutes, "Regulation of Aircraft, Pilots, and Airports" and Chapter 14-60, Florida Administrative Code, "Airport Licensing, Registration, and Airspace Protection" for the following site:

Shell Bay Golf Course Heliport, a private airport, in Broward County, at Latitude 25° 59' 24.787" and Longitude 80° 7' 54.173", to be owned and operated by Maltese Diplomat Owner, LLC, 501 Diplomat Parkway Hallandale Beach, FL 33009.

A copy of the Airport Site Approval Order, the Airport's application, the applicable rules, and other pertinent information may be obtained by contacting David Roberts, State Aviation Manager, Florida Department of Transportation, Aviation Office, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 46, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450; (850)414-4514; aviation.fdot@dot.state.fl.us.

Website:

<http://www.fdot.gov/aviation>.

**DEPARTMENT OF THE LOTTERY**

53ER24-53	12/16/24	12/17/24	50/244
53ER24-54	12/17/24	12/18/24	50/245
53ER24-55	12/17/24	12/18/24	50/245
53ER24-56	12/17/24	12/18/24	50/245
53ER24-57	12/17/24	12/18/24	50/245
53ER24-58	12/17/24	12/18/24	50/245

**DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES**

**Commission on Human Relations**

60Y-4.029	12/17/24	1/6/25	50/189
-----------	----------	--------	--------

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

**Board of Dentistry**

64B5-2.0150	12/18/24	1/7/25	50/176	50/232
-------------	----------	--------	--------	--------

**Board of Medicine**

64B8-42.001	12/16/24	1/5/25	50/184	
64B8-42.0011	12/16/24	1/5/25	50/185	
64B8-42.002	12/16/24	1/5/25	50/192	
64B8-51.001	12/16/24	1/5/25	50/171	
64B8-51.002	12/16/24	1/5/25	50/184	
64B8-51.004	12/16/24	1/5/25	50/184	
64B8-51.006	12/16/24	1/5/25	50/54	50/185

**Board of Nursing Home Administrators**

64B10-11.001	12/18/24	1/7/25	50/187
64B10-11.002	12/18/24	1/7/25	50/187

**FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION**

75-2.001	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-2.004	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-2.006	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-2.010	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-2.011	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-2.012	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-2.020	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-2.023	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-2.024	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-2.025	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-3.001	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-3.002	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-3.003	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-3.004	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-5.002	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-5.004	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-6.001	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-6.002	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-6.004	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206
75-6.0052	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206

75-6.006	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206	
75-6.009	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206	
75-6.012	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206	
75-7.020	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206	
75-8.003	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206	50/216
75-8.006	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206	
75-9.004	12/19/24	1/8/25	50/206	50/216

**LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE REVIEW/APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES**

**DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES**

**E911 Board**

60FF1-5.009	7/21/16	**/**/**	42/105
-------------	---------	----------	--------

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

**Board of Medicine**

64B8-10.003	12/9/15	**/**/**	39/95	41/49
-------------	---------	----------	-------	-------

**DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

**Family Safety and Preservation Program**

65C-9.004	3/31/22	**/**/**	48/28
-----------	---------	----------	-------

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it will be published on Wednesday of that week.